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ACFID

Australian Relief& Mercy Senices Ltd is amember of the Australian Council for
International Development (ACFID) and is a signatory to the ACFID Code of Conduct.

The Code requires members to meet high standards of corporate governance,
public accountability and financial management.

More information about the ACFID Code of Conduct can be obtained from
Australian Relief& Mercy Senvces Ltd and from ACFID at:

W ebsite: www.acfid.asn.au Email: code@acfid.asn.au
Tel: (02) 62851816 Fax: (02) 62851720
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ARMS partners with the World Relief Overseas Fund by acting as its agent forthe
delivery of aid and development projects.

More information about World Relief can be obtained from the World Relief website.

Website: www.worldrelief.org.au Email: info@wordrelief.org.au
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ARMS is amember of Missions Interlink; a network of Australian Christian organiza-
tions engaging in cross-cultural and global development.

Website http://www.missionsinterlink.org.au Emailmi@ea.org.au



The Board of Australian Relief &Mercy Services has
endorsed the Make Poverty History Campaign (for-

menyknown as the FairShare campaign) whichis
‘ being runby a large group of concemed aid agencies
] under the auspices oftheAustralian Council For
International Development (ACFID).

This campaign seeksto encouragethe Australian Federal Governmentto increase
its aid budgetandto embrace policies thatwill help to reduce word poverty byhalf
by2015. Australia has committed itselfto achieving what have been termedthe
Millenium Development Goals (MDG).These are as follows;

Millennium Development Goals

Goal 1: Eradicate extreme pov erty and hunger
*Halve, between 1990and 2015, the proportion of peoplewhose income islessthan $1a day.
*Halve, between 1990and 2015, the propottion of people who sufferfrom hunger.

Goal 2: Achiev e universal primary education
* Ensurethat, by2015, children everywhere, boysand girlsalile, will be ableto complete a full
course of primary schooling.

Goal 3: Promote gender equality and empower women
*Eliminate genderdisparityinprimary and secondaryeducation preferably by 2005and in all
levelsof educationnolaterthan2015.

Goal 4: Reduce child mortality
*Reduce by two-thirds between 1990 and 2015, the under-five mortality rate.

Goal 5: Improv e maternal health
* Reduce by three-quarters, between 1990 and 2015, the maternal mortalityratio.

Goal 6: Combat HIV/AIDS, malaria, and other diseases
*Have halted by2015 and begun to reversethe spread of HIV/AIDS.
*Have halted by 2015andbegun toreversetheincddence of malaria and other major disea<es.

Goal 7:Ensure environmental sustainability

*Integrate the principlesof austainable development into countrypoliciesand program and
reverse the lossof environmental resources.

*Halve, by 2015, the proportion of people without sustainable accessto safe drinking water.
*Halve, by 2015, the proportion of people without accessto adequate sanitation.

*Have achieved, by 2020, asignificant improvement inthelivesof at least 100 million slum
dwellers.

Goal 8: Develop a global partnership for development

*Dewvelop furtheranopen,rule-based, predictable, nondiscriminatorytrading and financial
system.

*Address the Least Developed Countries special needs.

*Addressthe gpecial needsof landlocked and small island developing states.

*Deal comprehensvelywithdeveloping countries debtincooperationwith the developing
countries,develop decentand productive workforyouth.

* Provide accessto affordable essential drugs indeveloping countries.

*Male available the benefitsof new technologies—egedially information and communication
technologies.
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Company Directory

National Office Manager - Rodney Richards
2 Wentworth St

Port Kembla NSW 2505

Phone (02) 4274 1090 Fax (02) 4274 9909

Email info@arms.org.au

Office of the National Director National Director - David Skeat
PO Box 878

Burnie, Tas 7320

Email davids @ar ms.org.au

Adelaide Manager - Marion Winn
Cambodian Harwvest

P.O. Box 658.

MORPHETTVALE, SA 5162

Email:rtc@ar ms.org.au

Perth Directors - Peter Brownhill / Kathy Kennedy
P.O. Box 8501

Perth Business Center

Perth WA 6849

Phone (08) 9328 5321 Fax (08) 9328 1324

Email: dir_office @ywamperth.org.au

Townsville Director - Ken Mulligan
P.O. Box 6221

Townsville Qld 4810

Phone: (07) 47712123 Fax (07) 47724414

Email: kenm@reeftooutback.com

Shoal Haven Office Manager - Helen Esdaile
9 Nundah Close

Bomaderry NSW 2541

Ph. 0432 034 148

Email:helene @ar ms.org.au

RescueNet National Co-ordinator - Mark Cockburn
PO Box 6206

Parr amatta BC

Par ramatta N SW 2150

Phone: (02) 9890 4222 Fax: (02) 98904211

Email: markc@ rescuenet.org.au

Web - www.rescuenet.org.au

Darwin Director - Jen Keatch
P.O. Box 290

Darwin NT 0801

Phone / Fax (08) 8981 2424

Email: jen@arms.org .au

Australian Capital Territory Director - Dianne Clark
76 Federal Hwy

Watson ACT 2602

Phone: 02 6241 5500 Fax 02 6241 6098

Email: canberra@arms.org.au

Newcastle Office Director - Will Knight
7 Beeson St.

Car diff South NSW

Phone: 02 4953 6609

Email: willk@arms.org.au



Board Of Directors

David Skeat (National Director)
Uiy
Cert | V Emeregenc y Medical Techician - (First Res ponse- Cairns, Queen sland)

National Director Mercy Ministries Youth With A Mission Australia. David has a background in teaching with specialisation
in Early Childhood. He has also worked in the area of appropriate technologies and is a qualified Emer gency Medical

Technician.

He has participated at board level for Mercy Ships Australia and has served as Chairman of Marine Reach Australia.
David is a member of the National Executive of Youth With A Mission Australia. He has served on the boards of Co- Aid
and Mercy Link Inc and of World Relief Australia. David was formerly the Director of Youth With A Mission Albury He is
now based in Burnie, Tasmania where he also serves in a wluntary capacity with the Tasmanian SES.

SteveAherne (Director)
National Director, Youth With A Mission Australia and is an Assistant regional Director for Youth With A Mission
International. Has participted at board level for Mercy Ships Australia. Steve serves on a number of boards, and is based

in M elbour ne.

Peter Brownhill (Director)
State Director for YWAM Western Australia and the Northern Territory. Foundation member of the work of the Institute for
the Nations in Western Australia. Peter lives and works in Perth.

TomHallas (Director)
Asia/Pacific Field Director for Youth With A Mission International. Member of Youth With A Mission’'s Internati onal
Leader ship Team. Based in Canberra.

ChrisHarrison J.P. (Director)
Formerly the Director of Youth With A Mission Darwin. He currently works as a staff development officer with Youth With

A Mission in Adelaide. He was formerly chairman of the Evangelical Alliance in Darwin. Based in Adelaide South Australia.

Jen Keatch (Director)

Cert | V Education of Intelle ctual Handic apped (Burwood State College, Vic toria)

Jen has a background working with children with disabilities and also has worked for the Anglican Church as a
community worker specializing in disadvantaged families. As well as leading ARMS Darwin Jen is studying Community
Dewelopment.

Ken Mulligan (Director)
Director of Youth With A Mission Townsville. Ken has a farming backg round. Established the national ministry of Mercy
Ships Australia, currently involved in training and management. Based in Townsville.

WendyRadford (Director)
Wendy is the Board representative from Cambodian Harwest. Wendy has vast experience having worked Asia and
Central Asia for many years. Wendy now lives in Adealaide with her family and works as a school counsellor.

Kathy Kennedy (Director)

Kathy has a nursing background and is actively inwlved in medical projects world wide. She has a passion for Primary
Health Care and founded the IPHC in Perth as well as the Birth Attendant school, both of which are recognised by
YWAM'’s training arm, the University of the Nations. Kathy lives in Perth.

Nik Matthews (Director)
L

Bachelor of Arts Honors Degree, Business with Ec onomics (University of CentralLancashire), 1995
Nik is the ARMS National Operations Manager. He has a back ground in Relief and Development. He has previously
wor ked for Youth With A Mission Mercy Ministries International based in Bangkok and also spent 8 years working for

Mer cy Ships International, based in Europe.

Kris Thomson (Director)
Kris is the former Base Director of YWAM Adelaide and South Australian State Director. He has served owerseas in
Indonesia and has a passion for alternative technologies, and in the development of internet resources. Kris comes from

a farming background and currently lives in Newcastle. Kris resigned from the ARMS Board 31/12/2010

DianneClark (Director)
Dianne is the Operations Director of YWAM Canberra. She has a strong interest in staff development and in reaching out

to the poor and needy
Will Knight (Director)

Will is a former farmer who now works as Co-Director of YWAM Tribe to Tribe a ministry that specializes in reaching out
to Aboriginal Communities. He also is a member of the State Emer gency Ser\ices in NSW.

ARMS National Website: www.arms.org.au




Ministries & Projects

Audralian Mercy Fund -(National Office)

Bali Omphanage (Darmwin)

Bith Atendant School -(Petth)

Bumese |IDP Project -(National Office)

Buzz OffMalaria Campaign (National Office)
CambodianHanest (fomerly Reverse The Curse) -(Adelaide)
Child Immunization Project -(Townsville)

Child Sponsorships- (National Office /Perth / Damwin)
Chongging Child Care Project(Perth)

Community DevelopmentSchool -(Perth)

EastTimor / Bali Projects - (Darwin)
DonnaMcDemid Memotial Fund - (National Office)
Emergency Relief Projects- (National Office)

Home of the OpenHeart (National Office)

Karen Refugee Projects- (National Office)

KidsArk- (National Office)

Main Course Cafe-(Shoalhaven /Canberma)
MalaiaProject (National Office)

Medical Boomerang Teams- (Perth)

Perth Community Development Project - (Petth)
Primary Health Care School - (Petth)

Piimalry Health Care Seminars(National Office)
RescueNet- (National Office/ Sydney)

Thailand Primary Health Care Projects- (National Office)

Wed Timor Relief Damin)

Associated Ministries & Organizations

ACFID (Australia)

Cambodian Hawvest (Cambodia)
DestinyIntemational

DonorsWithout Borders (Australia)

Free Butma Rangers(Thailand)

Home Of The OpenHeart (Chiang Rai Thailand)
Karen Department of Health and Welfare (T hailand)
Kid’sArk (East Timor)

Living WaterDevelopment (Australia /Myanmar)
Marine Reach (New Zealand)

Micah Network (Australia)
PartnersRelief & Development (Chiang Mai - T hailand)
ProjectLIFE (Bangkok- T hailand)

World Relief Audralia

YWAM Medical Ships

Youth With A Mission (Australia)

Overseas Offices

EastTimor-PO Box151 Dili, East Timor
Cambodia-PO Box486 Phnom Penn,Cambodia

People'sRepublic of China- Chongqing (Contactwith the China Office ismade through ARMS Perth)



ARMS Charter

Australian Relief& Mercy Services Ltd (ARMS) has been setup with the express
purpose of providing directrelief to persons in anycountry who are suffering, distress,
misfortune,destitution, helplessness and necessitous circumstances.

ARMSis anon gowernmental/non-profitorganization thatis governed byanelected
board which is elected from its membership. Elections happenonce everycalendar
year.

ARMS is funded through publicdonations, and throughthe seeking of grants and
corporate donations from the business sector.All funds thatare receipted intoARMS
aresubjectto a yearlyindependentauditthat meets the standards ofthe Australian
Council For International Development(ACFID).

ARMSuses the services ofvolunteers who donate their ime to ARMS to achieve its
goals.

AllARMS workers are trained to uphold the dignityof thoseto whomthey have been
sentto senve.

ARMS does not give preference on the basis of nationality, gender, ethnicity, creed, or
religion.

ARMS is willing tocooperate with allgovernments and other non government
organizations forthe commongoodofthose in need.

ARMSbeliewes firmly in the values of integrityand accountabilityin all its dealings.

Capstone Statement

ARMS - people who care helping people in need.



Company Outline

Australian Relief & Mercy Services Ltd (ARMS)
is anon profitcharitable company, limited by

2 guaranteeand incorporatedin the ACT, with
registered offices in Melbourne,Perth, Darwin,

ul-s'ml an eliet and Wery Sevicey 1o Adelaide, Townsville and the Sunshine Coast.

Australian Relief & Mercy Services Lt is the
mercyministryarm ofYouth With AMission Australia.

ARMSis dedicated to the relief of people suffering hardship and distress both within
Australiaandoverseas anddoes sothrough a National Fundand International Fund

thathawe been setupin accordancewiththe provisions ofthe Income Assessment

Act1997.Donations to the work of ARMS withinAustralia are taxdeductible.

All ARMS staff give their senices and expertise without charge. They maintaintheir
personalsupportfrom people who believe in the value of their ministry.

ARMS has manyexpressions ofits ministrysome of which include, training,
emergencyrelief,provision of medical supplies,project grants, childsponsorships,
communitydevelopment, ministrytothe homeless, familycounsellingand the provision
ofprimary health care.

ARMS relies on the generosityofthe church, the corporate sector, smallbusiness,and
the publicin general forthefinances necessarywith whichto runits ministry.

Mission Statement

As a Christian organization thatsees Christ as the ultimate expression of God’'s mercy,
ARMS outlines its commitmentto mercy ministies inthe following statements;

1. To example thelove and compassion of Godto a needyworld.
2.Torestore wholeness and hopeto brokenlives.
3.Toempowerandsupportfamilies incrisis.

4.Toequip peoplethroughtraining and skills development.

5.To serve communities bysharing resources. ‘

6. To Mobilise people to help thepoor and the needy




Australian Mercy

Gk Forsome time nowthe Board ofAustralian
- i Relief& Mercy Services Ltd has wanted to

launcha new branding for the companythat

would help itin itcommunication boththe

Anstralon Roliet and Mormy Somdices 1rd

cormporateworldand its donor base.

Theterm ARMSis providing us withsome brand confusionand we received hate mail
becauseothergroups calledARMShave made commentsin the media and had people
saytheywill notgive to us becausethe theydon’twanttogive money to anorganization
thatbuys guns.Letme saycategoricallythatwe don’tbuyguns butthefactis thatthe name
ARMS has an association withguns and ammunitionis confusing potental donors who are
notfamiliar withus.As a Boardwe havewanted to make a clear statementofwho weare
andwhatwe do thatcannotbe confused.

Aftera protracted processthe Board came up with the nameAustralian Mercy. ltis a
shortening of Australian Relief &Mercy Services thatsays it all. Australian is who we are
Mercyis whatwedo. We are notchangingour constitutionto reflectthis change,just
adopting abranding in the sameway that Cokeis a brandingofthe Cocoa Cola company
orthe 40 Hour Famine is abranding of World Vision.

Ourfirst move was o trademark this name,which unexpectedlyentangled us in alegal
dispute with anAmerican charitywho challenged our rightto use thatname. Aftersome
negotiationon this matter theissue was resolved inour favour and we now ownthe
trademarkAustralian Mercy.

Thedelays that were caused bythe rademark dispute greatlydelayed the launch of
Australian Mercyand manythings had to be puton hold until the issue was resolved inour
favour. Nowthat we own our trademark we are keen to quicklymove ahead.

Inthe coming months our website will be changingandthe domainams.org.au and
australianmercyorg will point to the same site. An Australian Mercylogo is under
dewelopmentandoverthecoming months we willbelaunchingAustralian Mercyas our
newbranding. Focus on Mercywill re-emerge and eventuallywill have anew format. We
are hopeful that bythetime the 2011 /202 financial yearends thatthe Australian Mercy.

The Boardanticipates thatbychangingour branding we will give ourselves a distinctive

that cannotbe confusedwithother groups andbe confused in ways that wouldbe
counterproductive to whatwe aretrying to achieve.

National Director
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National Director’s Report

By David Skeat

Restructuring ARMS

2010 /2011 has been ahugeyearforARMSin
which we have withessedthe biggeststructural
changesthatARMS haseverseen.

TheBoard has been goingthrough a processof
trying to restructure itself so thatit runsmore
efficiently and can betterservethe intereds ofthe
company. Ourgoal wasto reduce the Board sze,
introduce afunctioning Advisory Board and
structure Board meetings so that atleastone 3
day retreat could happeneach yearwhereby
Directorscould lookmore closely at howthe
companyrunsimprove ourpolicy development and ‘
project delivery. Forthe past 12 monthsthis

proceshas beenhappeningandatthebeginning
ofthe2011 — 2012 financial year the new structure
comesinto place.

Thismeans that ®veral Directorswill have retired asat the end of the finandal year2010 — 2011. These
are Tom Hallas, Ken Mulligan, Peter Brownhill, Kathryn Kennedy, Steve Aherne, Will Knight, and Wendy
Radford. ARMS isvery grateful forthe hard workthat these directorshave putin overmany years.Tom
Hallaswasa foundational member of the companybackin 1988. Howeverwe have notlod the talentof
these former directorsaltogether, most of them have volunteeredto ®rveon the ARMS Advisory Board
so that the pool ofaccumulated wisdom isstill availableto us.1 wouldlike to publidy saythank you to
all of these people forthe outstandingworkthey have donein making ARMS what itistoday. We are
greatly indebted toyou.

Thestructural changes to ARMS donot gop atthe Board, we have alsore-edablished our National
Office,and moved it from Melbourne to Port Kemblain NSW. Thismowve givesusaccessto a greater
numberof volunteer gaffwho can help withthe day todayrunning ofthe Company.Already the move
haspaiddividendsinhelping usto catch up on our adminidrative backlog.

Tworedgnationswere al® received in the financial year that affected ouroperations. NikMatthews
resgnedasNational OperationsManager, Nikremains onthe Board but wasnotableto continue inthe
role which wasbased inMelbourne. Nik did anoutganding job andwe misshim buttotally understand
hiscircumstances. Jan Smith ourAccounts Managerforthe last 10 yearsalso has retired. Jan’s




husdandhad retired from hisjob and we wish herandher
husand Desa very happy retirement together.

It wasnot possible to find the replacementsnecessary forthese
resignationsand in the processof the restructure; we didlose
contactwith ourdonor base, which had ongoing affectsonour
incomefortheyear.

Thegood newsisthat the restructure hasgiven usthe
opportunitytolaunch our new branding Australian Mercy.Inthe
coming yearARMS will be relaunching itswebsites, FocusOn
Mercyand other communication under the name of Australian
Mercy.

Thesimplefactisthatin the coming 12monthsARMS willlook
and operate differently to whatit did 12 monthsago and project
delivery,compliance and govemance will be greatlyimproved
throughthe restructure.

National Office Relocation.
In this past yearwe have seenthe National/ Registered office of ARMS relocate to Port KemblaNSW
the new contactinformationis asfollows;

2 Wentworth St (PO Box 132)
Port Kembla NSW 2505

Ph:02 42741090
Fax 02 42749909
Emailinfo@amsom.au

The National Director David Skeat still livesin Tasmania hiscontact detailsare;

POBox878
Burnie Tagmania 7320

Email davids@arms.org.au

TheARMS preence in Melbourne hasclosd butthe PO Box atSurrey HillsNorth will remain openfor
12months and mail £nttol Kent Rd SurreyHillswill be redirectedto Port Kembla.

Thenew arrangementin Port Kembla isworking well and ARMSisfad making upforthe time lostin
thetransition of the National Office. The new Board is working well and areview of our proceduresand
processesis underway.




Donors Without Borders
InNovember 2009 the ARMS Board made the
decision to be part of the DonorsWithout Borders
Philanthropiclnitiative an projectthat providedin-kind
donationsof HIV medicinesto Australian charities
who could disperse these to registered projects
overseas.

TheARMS Board sawthatthrough thisinitiative
many projectsthat we have contact with in Africaand
Asia could benefit ARMS moved forward with this
project and saw manyhundredsof thousandsof
dollarsof HIV medicinesdonated — these medicines
were donatedto a projectwe had registeredin
Burundi.

Unfortunatelywe have hadto withdraw fom the
initiativeforlegal reasons. (A statement on thismatter appearslaterin thes reports.)

ARMSthanksDonors Without Bordersfor their kind assistance in providing these much needed
medicinesto people who are living with HV/AIDS in Burundi.

Karen Projects

IN2010— 2011 ARMS provided funding forboth
Pehlu'sorphanage and Corinna’spreschool inMaeda
campt. These projectscontinue to care for
traumatized and abandoned children from the Burma
conflict.

Childrenin the preschool continue to thrive and
children caredforbyPehlu and Sundayinthe
omphanagereceive excellent care, unfortunately asthe
children grow and leave school there are no jobsthey
cango toso many of the youngwomen marryand
becometeenage mothers Thisisnot uncommonin
Mae-lacamp andisone of the great tragediesofthe
curentsituation. Many of the youth in camp are with
outhope.

Inthe coming 12 monthsARMS will betaking onthe
funding ofa middle school in the camp butthere
needsto be more doneto help give the youth in the
Mae-la camp a sense ofpupose and ahope forthe
future.

ARMS continuesto be concerend about the securtiy
and continued safety of refugeesliving in the Maeda
camp.

Poalicy changesbythe Thai goverment have greatly
restricted out access to thecampsand Thaimedia
cany artidesthatcondone the forceful repatriation of
masssof refugeesbackinside Burma which would
bea death sentenceto many. Many of therefugees
aretemorfied and are desperately seeking help.

International policy withregardsto assylum seekers
malesitdifficult forthe refugeesto emmigrateto
other countriessuch asAustralia.

ARMSis seeking more funding to increase thework it can do forthese projects.



ARMS National Office Trust Funds.

ARMS has3 investment fundsthat have been set up to fund ecific activitiesof itswork.

Donationsmade into these fundsare inveged into ethical unspeculative invegmentsandthe proceeds
from theseinvestments are availabletothe ARMS Board to use asdefined bythe fundsfoundation
document.

The ARMS ACTA Disaster Trust hasbeen setup with ANZ Trustees. Thistrust provides fundsfor
ARMS disaster relief work ARMS specifically ussthismoney to funditsRescueNet disasterre-
sponse ministry.

The Australian Mercy Fund providesfunds that canbe usd to helpinitiate projects orprovide small
grantsto projects that have aspedific project related need.

The Donna McDermid Memorial Fund isthe newestinvestment fund and hasbeenset up byARMS
toprovide funds to projectsthat are dealing with genderinjustice and sexual abuse in the developing
world.

Donationsto thes fundscan be made through the ARMS National Office.

Table 1
ARMS ACTA Disaster Trust ANZ Trustees have placed these
(Established 2006) funds into an et_hlcal portfolio that

includesa significantshare
component. Therefore the value of

Total payments made to ARMS since 2006.  8,053.82 the market value ofthe shares.

Market value of fund at April 30, 2010. 50,040.10

Donations received 2010 - 2011 0

Dividend received 2009 - 2010 2,289.17

Table 2

The Australian Mercy Fund

2009 - 2010
In 20,10 -2011 The AMF made Invested Income 20,500.00
nodisbursals offunds. Holding Account 7,129.23
Disbur sal Account 4,605.28

Total

Table 3

The Donna McDermid Memorial Fund

IN2010 -2011the Donna
Bal B/ Fwd 7,064.32 McDermid Memorial Fund made
nodisbursals to projects.

Donations 654.65 . .
Interest received 139.83 The major one time set up cost
Sub Total 7.858.80 for DMMF was for website
y :
developnent.
Expenses 0

Total 7,858.80
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Campaign Report 2010 - 2011
By David Skeat

In 2010 /2011 Buzz focussed the majority of itseffortson its workinside Burma and Thailand, a
secondyear of funding wasreceived from adonorin Singapore who wishesto remainanonymous.
ARMSisvery grateful forthisfunding asit hashelped usto establishresponsible programsonthe
groundin Thailandand Burma that are saving lives. T his reportispartially the feed the backwe have
given tothe donorto showthem whattheirgenerosityis accomplishingin the lives the Burmese
people.

ThegrantempowersBuzz Offto workinthe following areas;
Training and Education, Treatment, Prevention, within Myanmar Buma).

Training on the Thai / Burmese Border
TheMalaria training wasdone on 2 fronts. Firdly
trainingwasdone byreinforcing Malaria content in the
ARMS Primary Health Care Seminarsthat are runin
Thailand closeto Mae Sot. In 2010 /2011 these
seminarsattracted 12 studentsand we run on site
withinthe Maela refugee camp. (At the time of the
running ofthis yearsseminarthe camp hospitalwas
irregularlytreating patientsowingto the doctorsbeing
indispute with the camp authorities.

These seminars run for 4 weelks. Fundsfrom the grant made sure that training resourcesfor this
course were available and each student received instructionon Malaria, itsdiagnosis, teatmentand
prevention. Studentswere trained to use the Rapid Diagnogic Testsandhaemoglobintesting aswell
asthe treatment of nets, and diagnossand treatment of Malaiia.

Trainingon the Thai/ Bumese borderareawasalso given tomedics. Two microscopy courses
involving 12medics were runin 2010 /11 the most recent in February2011. The microscopy course
helpshealth care workersto improve theirmicroscopy skills, and maintaintheirmicroscopesin harsh
tropical conditions.

As aresult of this year'scourse we are producing a smallflip chartto help medics more readily
identify malaria using amicroscope. As previously repotted
we are aking the Faculty of Bio-Medicine atthe Univerdty
of Tagmania for helpinfinding hi resolution picturesthat
can be used inthisproject.

Thelarger microscopy course wasrun in Mae Sariang in a
classroom situation. The second coursewas in a personal
mentoring environment with 4 medicsdose to Mae Sot in a
clinic envimnmentand provided onsite coaching forthem.

The Microscopyand diagnosistraining isun by Mr Robin
Walesa retired Bio medical scientist who hasals had
extensive experience asahealth care trainer.



: __ Training in Mandalay, Lashio and Sittwe

_| Thisyear Buzz Off ran three seminarsin 3 statesthat
trained 165 malaria workers.An extensve reporton
thistraining waslodged in February 2011.

Basedon our experienceslast year, we were only
expectingapprox 30studentsperseminar, the nearly
doubling of the numbersofattendeesput alotof
pressure on usasa training gaff and on our prepared
resources.

However, two impottantthingshappened asa consequence of this year'straining.

Firdly itwasourfirst oppottunity to introduce the flip chartsthat were developed lastyear —these
were very successful and all studentswere given a setto usein the villages. Workon more training
resourcesisin the pipeline.

Thesecond thing thatwasa direct result ofthese seminarswasthe further developmentof
partnershipswithlocal groups. One group (a team ofyoung doctorsworking outof Mandalay) have
alreadytaken RDT testing ktsand haemoglobin tegingoutinto the remotevillagesand used them for
malaria diagnosis.

We have now a MOU inplace withthisgroup of doctorsand are awaiting the paperwotkfrom a second
group in Sittwe. We are stillworking on engaging the group inLashio but communication isharder
there.

Atthistime we are :eking torewrite the training manualandwill have it completedand translated by
theend ofthe year. The new training manual will also focusonnutrition issuesasthereis a direct
correlation between diet andthe impactthat malara hason the humanbody.

Inthe next year more resourceswill be available for ssminar attendeesand will be pas®ed onto
alreadyworking graduates.

We are aboutto launchan office in Yangon which will co-ordinate the networks that are being
edablished.

Theseminarfomat that we outlined in last year'sreportremains the same exceptfor the indusion of
the nutrition component and we have now alsoincluded a net treatment workshop aspart ofthe
seminarwhere participants actuallytreat a net. Thishandsoncomponent proved helpfultomany ofthe
studentsthistime aroundin Burma some findthe LLIN netstoo expensiveto buy and seethe
treatmentof ordinarynetsasgood alternative.

Buzz Offwill continue todistribute LLIN netsbutwe
arelooking at the possihility of alsoencouraging
normal net treatment where communitiesdo not
have access LLINnets.

Saw MarcusWinn isremaining with us and hasalso
recruited a second etymologistMr Mau MauWin
(norelation) toassistwith the seminar presentation
—both DrWinn and Mr Winwill help usinthe
rewriting of the training manual.




Inthe rewriting of the manual we are convincedthat the content must be overlaid with a broad approach
toMalaria training —have not trained over250 people we feel that it isimportantthatwide overlaysin
thetraining program coverissuesthat all intersct on the issue of Malaria. Dealing with thisdiseas is
more than medication and mosquitoes. Forinstance nutrition is an essential factor with Malaria. Those
who have a healthydiet will handle the disease betterthan thosewho are already anaemic. Peoplewho
have had Malaria asageneral will recoverfasterifthey return to a nutritousdiet. In our Sittwe seminar
some delegatestold usthatit wastheir cultural tradition togive awoman who hasjug given birth a
diet ofbean leaves salt and waterinordertodeal with the ‘badblood”. Thisdiet will give bothmother
andchild a poor start and if the motherisrecovering from malariawill seriously disadvantage her
recovery.We have covered these areasform the start but we feel thatinthe newhandbookwe need to
emphasise these matters asmuch aswe emphasise the areasof mosquito management, diagnosis,
treatmentand prevention

Treatment

Thetreatment side ofthe program wasbroken into 4 mainsections. Procurement and distribution of
mosguito nets procurementanddistribution of anti-malarial medication; procurementand distribution of
Rapid Diagnostic Testing kits(RDTg andthe procurementand distribution of haemoglobintesting kits.
Somefundswere set aside to help coverthe costs of freight. From early in the program it became
apparentto usthattherewas aneedto extend thispart ofthe programto includethe procurementand
didribution of Haemoglobintesting kitsaswell asthe medications mentioned above.

Lag yearwe thoughtthatthere would be a greater
emphasgsin providing diagnosisviathe distibution of
RDTs, however 2010/ 2011 proved tobe a year in which
there wasa greater needfor prevention amongstthe IDP
communitiesand 2 ouremphasgsshifted tothe

provisonof LLINnets.

Mosquito Net Distribution

Buzz Off distributes Dawa Netsto the IDPsthese nets
are made by Tana Netting and are closeto full
registration as approved LLINnets. They arethe best netsthatare available in Thailand.

Overthe past 12 monthsBuzz Offhasdistributed 8200 LLINnetsand 20 ITN single netsin the Buzz
Offseminars. The vastmajority ofnets (7200)were distributed in the IDP campswith 1020 nets
digributedthrough the Buzz Off seminars held in Mandalay, Lashio, and Sittwe.

Buzz Off distributes mainly family sized LLIN netsasfamily units tendto sleep under each net.
Howeverwe were requested to provide sosme snallersingle sized nets 2000 LLIN nets provided by
Buzz Offwere single netstherest were family sized. The majority ofnetswould have provided
protectionforup to5 peopleat atime.

In the IDP campsemphasiswas given tosupplying new arrivalswith netsso astolessen thechance
ofdoublingup onnetrecipientsfrom last year.

Netpriceswere budgeted at US$10 per net but the actual pricewas doserto US$7.10 pernet which
freed upfundsin the budget to buy more nets.

The 1000 Permanet LLIN netsthatwere purchased from Vestergaard Frandsen in Yangon were
significantlymore expensive thanthe Daiwanetswe supplythe IDP communities Vegergaard
Frandsn say that the in country costs which include import duties isthe reason forthe extreme price
difference. We managed togetthe price reducedfrom approxAUD14 perunittojust over SAUD10 per



unit. We are hopeful that as we ordermore nets from Vestergaard Frandsen thatthe price of unitswill
continueto bereduced. The reality isthatevenat $AUD10.00 a unit that isthe cheapest LLIN thatis
availableinside in Myanmar.

Rapid Diagnostic Tests

Buzz Off isnow using and distributing the Carestart RDT. Our
research shows thatout of all the RDTscurrently on the market
thistest ratesthe highestin itseffectiveness. pAa
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A very good variation of this product iscalled “Lab in apack’'which isa complete single ted complete
with buffer,lancet and alcohol wipe. This meansdistribution ofthe testismore flexible and canbe
didributed in smaller numbersratherthanhaving to distribute whole boxes ata time..

HoweverCarestart isnot readily available in Thaillandand Burma yetso in some caseswe have hadto
distribute and use otherRDTssuch as Paracheck We hope to fully transition those working with usto
Carestartas theybecome more readilyavailable.

Inthis 12 month period ARMS expended $AUD10,7000n RDTsthisbought6020 individual RDT teds
which weremainly usedin IDP clinics and in IDP camps bytrained peroonnel.Approx 1000 RDTswere
didributed into the netwolkswe are edablishing in Burma. Theindividual cost of eachtestisapprox
$AUDL.78.

One networkreported thatthe 1250 RDTstheyreceived from us were enoughtosupply 7 mobile health

clinicsand 8 medical unitsused by relief teams.
At time of writing thisreport all the figuresfrom the clinicshave not asyet arrived but we believe that

mog ifnot all the RDTshave been usd.

Through the seminars un in Mandalay, Lashio and Sittwe
another100 tests were distributedto the medical team
thatisin Mandalay these were paid foras part of the
General Training Expensespartofthebudget. Thes have
been used. (300 RDTswere bought tohelp trainpeople
howto use them)

Medications

The Buzz Off Campaigndigributed $AUD20,073in
medications, the majority of these fundswere spenton
atemisinin-based combination therapy (ACT),some funds
were used to buy injectable quinine forthe reatment of Pf
malariaand Chloroquine forthe treat of PvMalaria. Some supportmedicationssuch as iron tablets,
vitamins, and paracetamol were also bought with these funds.

Microscopy costs.

Thes were actually higherthanwhat they appear, 9 of the travel coststhat ispartand parcel ofthe
trainingbudget asthey were all in the ame trip. The trainingof the clinic workersandthe
maintenance of their equipmentisproviding better diagnosisin remote areas. Much work hasbeen
doneby RobinWalestoget all microscopesto be dored safely so that they are fungusfree andthat
they lag longernthe extreme conditionin whichthey are used.

Airtightpladic boxeshave been bought in which to store the microscopesand these have been
renovated for the job. Buzz Off bought ¢ainsand slides and otherlab itemsoverthe 12 month period.



Thes costs willbe higher next yearaswe produce the small flip chart formedicsworking the field
which are beingtrained to use microscopes. We believe these small chartswillimprove identification of
parasitesand thusimprove diagnosis. These chartswill approxA5 orA6in sizeand be in full colour
with a spiral bindingand waterproof paper. The working title is“What Aml Looking At?”

TheMicroscopy program hascontinued to be an important program formedicsworkingin IDP areas.
We are notaware of any othersuch programsthat are running in thisregion of the border.

Haemoglobin Testing

It hasbeen hard forusto trackdown Haemoglobin testing kitsin-
country and so all the kitsthat we have distibutedwe have caried
inby hand.

Generallyspeakng the mog efficientway for usto obtain these
kitsis to buy them overseasand have themdelivered tothe
countryin which we wantto use them, (if thatis possible)orto
hawve delivered to Audralia and we take themwith uswhenwe
travel on site. We are seeking a more expedient solution to thisas
we come into 2011-2012.

Thetestingkitsare veryeasyto use andhighly accurate. Theyhelpidentifyanaemia; once identifiedit
canthenbe effectivelytreated. Dietis the bestway to preventanaemia but a boostcan be given tothe
system through the taking of iron tablets.

The fundsnot spentin thisarea have been held over and will
beusedto importmore haemoglobintesting kitsinto
& Thailandand Burma at alaterdate. .

Treatments

The Malairiaparasitesonthe Thai Burmese borderhave
become resistant to osme major medicines thatare
commonly used totreat Pf malarna. Resistance to
artemisinin hasbeen observed on both the Thai/Cambodian
and Thai/Burmese borders. Resistance seemsto naturally occurthrough aspontaneous change inthe
parasite, howeverthiscan be sped up by undertreating apatient.

Generally clinicsrecommend three orfourday treatmentsforPf malaria these treatmentsdramatically
reduce the numbersofPf parasitesin the blood and if theimmune system isstrongthe white blood
cellsshould kickin to clean up the remaining parasites However assome of the parasiteshaveonly
been pattially treated by the medication if they are sucked
outby a mosquito and reinjectedinto another person the
partially reated parasite passeson tois progeny a higher
resigance to the medication that was used totreat it. Thus
resigance spreads. Itisfarbetter touse an antimalarial for
alongerperiod andmake sure allthe parasites are killed
thanto under treat and riskthe parasitesbecoming
redstantto medication. Forthisreason we are encouraging
ourparnersto adopt a longer treatment regime. Thiswill
cos more money butwill prolongthe use ofthe
medicationsin the treatment ofMalaria.




2010/2011

Buzz Off rached manythousandsof potential Malara
victimsand saved many lives. The distribution of 8220 nets
wasa great result, and farin excessof last year's figure. If
we calculate the each familysized net protected 5 people
and each single onethennet then the numbersofpeople
protected through this yearsnet distribution are asfollows;

Testing and Treatment
The networks that we feedinto keep figureson a 6 monthly

cyde.The onlyfiguresthatare availableat thistimeare
those for July 1 —December 31, 2010.

Thisisbecause ofthe capacity of the BUZZ Off program to repondflexibly and meet the existing

needson the ground. We expected the emphasstobe on testingthose affected by malariathisyear
but the overwhelming need was to prevent
malariathrough the use of nets.

One of the networks BUZZ Off works with has
reported that up to the end of April 2011 they
recorded 944 people with malatria symptoms
that were treated asmalalia where no diagnosis
wasavailable. Where RDT testing wasavailable
they saw 747 confirmed casesof Pf malaria
with no casesPv malariarecorded.

Asecond networkBUZZ Off supports usesboth

1 " d [} o | . .
L the microscope coaching we offeras well as
2 [ . : [
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ofMalaria. 2,221 were people who preented
with dgnsofmalariaandwere treated withouttesting being availableto confirm diagnosis. 1,444
cassofPf malaria Plasmodium falciparum)were diagnosd using RDTsand microsopy. 353 cases
of Pv (Plasmodium vivax) wasalso diagnosed. Thisisabout an 80% occurrence rate of the Pfmalaria
inthis region.

A third network hasrecently been able tosendin theirtesting figuresand have confirmedthatbetween
July 1, and December 31, 2010 theytreated 4,374 cases of malaria. Therewere 3,149 presumptive
malariatreatmentsbut wheretheywere able toidentify the malaria types, theyrevealed 884 with Pf
malariaand 341 withPvmalaria. Thisshowsa72% occurrence of the deadly Pf malaiia.

Thefourth network hasfinally been able to gettheirresultsto us. They report treating 4,260 people,
with 2,002 presumed to have malaria, 1,661 with Pfmalaria, and 597 with Pvmalaria. Theirreportisfor
the 6 monthsfrom July 2010 to Dec 2010. Again the breakdown of the resultsreveals 72% of tested
casesarethe deadly Pf malaria.

Since February2011, up to 100 cases of malaria inremote Burma through the Mandalay medical team
werediagnosed andtreated.

The deadly Plasmodium falgiparum (Pf)isresponsible foramund 60%of all malaria infectionsand

90%of all malaria deaths Plasmodiumvivax (Pv)onthe otherhand isregponsble forabout30% of
allmalariainfections but lessthan 10% of all deaths. These two speciesof parasite represent the vast
majority of malariacaseson the planet.

Presumptiv e cases: caseswhereno diagnodicswere available but the patient showed symptomsof
malaraandwere treated formalaria.



Given thelackof medical resourcesin remote areasof
Burma particularlyin the IDP settings, the lackof
nutrionand preence ofanaemiaare a serioushealth
concernsthat willaddto malaria’s deadlyimpact.
Therefore we factoreach confirmed Pf malaria case
treatedasa life saved.

We also count 50%of undiagnosed casesand 10% of
caesof Pvmalaria asa livessaved. The presence of
Pfmalariain unconfimed casesisin all probability
much higherthan 50%andthefigure istherefore
conewvative.

It should be noted thatthe figuresin Networks2, 3 and4 are only for6 monthsand inall reality could
be 50% higheragain.

We condude thatthe Buzz Off campaignin Burmahas helpto save a minimum of 9,014 livesin IDP
areasand 100 livesin remote Burma. (Thismeansbecause ofBUZZ Offsmalaria treatment, over
13,000 deathshave been prevented)

We alo suggest that astheteamsinside Burma that are inIDP areasbecome betterresourced that
thisfigure will significantly grow.

Western Papua

Buzz Off hasalso been providing small granttoclinics inthe
WedernPapua(Irian Jaya- Indoneda). The health networksthat
we are in contactwiththere have reportedto usthat effective anti-
malarial medicationsare too expensive forlocal clinicsto afford.
Hence the use oflesser effective medications by remote clinics
increasesthe death toll from Pf malaria which is the most
commonmalaria in theregion.

Buzz Off isproviding small cash grantsto these clinics that pays
forthe more effective medications. We are also needing to raise
fundsto improve testingand run malaria education programs.

Mozzie Net Bank .
Buzz Off hasalso seen significant net distribution inAustralia with nets:-"'_"“-h
goingtoout ofthe countrywih travellerswho are going to Malaria T
endemicregions Tasmanian based travel agent Travel With ACause
are buying LLINnetsthroughARMS Mozzie Netbankinitiative and
sellingthem to theirclientswho take them asgiftsto peoplewho are
withouta net. Last year Travel With ACausedistributed over 100 Olset
netsthrough thisprogram.

ETBANK
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Primary Health Care Seminar Reoprt

By Marion Wilbraham

Thisyearwe were again invited to hold the Primary
Health Care minarinddethe MaeLa Refugee Camp
from 7tto 25" February. The course wascompacted
into 3 weeks, which proved to be insufficient forregular
role play practice expelience.

ARMS again provided the lunch ime meal each day,
andprovided the seminarat no cost to the students.

Twenty seven studentswere graduated and 12 of these
were mature age students The lectureswere
interpreted into boththe Burmese & Karenlanguages,
andthe medication dosage chatt wastranslated into
Bumese, which willbe reproducedfor future courses.

We held a full day dinic with 73 patientscomingfor
help. Five“Doctor groups’ offive/dx studentseach,
didexcellent workwith patient higory taking; but
lacked confidence to suggesta diagnosis. Geoff
Masters& hiswife Keren gave valuable assistance as
supervisors& with relating personally with patients.

Onestudent wasfound to have very high BP. Shewas
providedwith 1mth medication, with 2mthstobe
provided at relevant ime.

We have been aslked to runa TeachersTraining
Seminarnext year during the school vacation, withthe
intention of having health educationin the Camp
schools.

Theteacherswere David Skeat, Robin Wales, Geoff
Masters& Marion Wilbraham; we stayed inMae Sot &
traveled to the camp eachday. Atruckhired forthe
lastweekwasa wonderful luxury, and we were able to
transport school stationary suppliesfrom Mae Sotfor
the coming tem.

Ouraim isto helpthe students understand thatmany
health problemscan bereduced oreven awoided by the
u=e of hygiene,immunization, good nutrition principles,
and early diagnosis. We encourage them to putinto
practice, in their own lives what they have learned, and
toshare their knowledge with other peopleliving
nearby.

Ourprinciple in thisminidry is little bit, by little bit’.



Microscopy Ministry Report

By Robin Wales

Afterteaching for the second week ofthe ARMSPHC
seminarat Mae La Camp during the lag week ofApiril,
| continued with Buzz off microscopyand otherthings
from May 1st to 21st.

Thefirstweek ofMay wasspent repairing KDHW
clinicmicroscopes, Eh Kalu had these brought into
Mae Sot and Irepairedthemin the Partnersoffice
there. Most were affected byfungusgrowth in lenses
and prigns,some damaged inotherways. Icleaned
and niced themall, replaced some oil immersion
objectives, cleaned fungusfrom prismsinbinocular
headswhere possible, but ome of these are pema-
nently etched. Six of the seven microscopes| wotked on were regoredto good usable condition. We
had given boxesforstorage of microscopeswithsilica gel to prevent fungusdamage butin some
cassthe microxcopes had tobe removed fom them when escaping from the enemy. | went to Chiang
Maiduringthistime and boughtmicroscopy suppliesinduding mirrors,and Sulphurforscabies
treatment for the PHC sminar.

| returned toMae La during the lastweekof the schoolto help with Clinicpracs We supplied mosguito
netsfor the studentsandforPehlu and Corina.l al® spentanight with Em and Napoleon atMae
Salit Kee and gave 50 netsandsome RDTsand Haemoglobinkitto Em for her minigryto womenon
both sidesof the borderthrough Mothers' Union of the Anglican Church. Some netswere alsoleftin
Mae Sot forKDHW.

ChrisDolan from partnerstookme and two ofthe repaired microscopesto Mae Sariang the lag weekl
wasthere. Gyi Gyi, agood Karen fiendisin charge of health care andIDP clinicsin Northem Karen
State had asked if | could repair their microscopesand come to Mae Sariangto help dinicworlers
frominside Burma with Malariamicroscopy. We did thisinhis KDHW base, aswell asteaching, |
checkedtheir findingsinblood smearsfrom clinicsfor accuracy and quality of staining, showed them
some rarertypesof malarial parasitesand helpedimprove theirpreparation ofblood smears.

I met Dr Bert White, a Pathologig who ownsaprivate Med Lab inNZ, hehad ahouse inChiang Mai
buthasnowmoved nearto Mae Sariang and livesthere for part ofthe year He helpsGyi Gyi a lot with
teaching and providesstains slidesetcfor theirdinicuse.

Burma/Thailand/Vietnam Jan 14 to Feb 27th 2011
Burma Jan 15 to Feb 4

David Skeat, Maiion Wilbraham and |, metin Rangoonon Jan15thand for the nextthree weeksheld
malariateaching seminarsfor Churchand Community Health workersinthree Statesin Myanmar: --
MandalayDivisonin Mandalay, Northern Shan State in Lashio, and Sittwe, onthe bay of Bengalin
Rakniine State, whichreachesto Bangladesh. We hadover 160 studentsinduding some from mostof
the Bumese ethnic groups, and from villageswith no Health clinics oraccessto medical help.The
certification we have giventhem will enable themto help :
inplaceswhere the Military Govt would previouslyhave
preventedthis Most villagesare Buddhist, animigic, or
controlled by witch doctors.

Thailand/Vietham Feb 5 to 27

We arrivedin Mae Sot Mae Sot on SatFeb5th andthe
PHC seminarlead by Marion garted Mon 6th. David
taughtatthe schoolonMondayand Tuesday whilel
repaired Microsopesin the Partnersoffice to take to
Gyi Gyi in Mae Sariang for us in Northern Karen state
IDP clinics. On Wednesdaywe hired a truckand David
drove usto Mae Sariangto deliverthem.




We met DrJonathan andtooka microscope to hisdinicin a
KarenVillage before Mae La on the way and had discussions
with him and hisLab Techwho willbe usingit. We also visited
Pehlu, and then had lunchatMae Salitwith ourgood friendsEm
and Napoleon. Em washopingto translate at our PHC schoolin
Mae La but couldn't because her father hadto have one eye
taken out at Mae Sot hogital, shehashim athomeand
changesthedressing evely day. She isgettingLer Bwey's
microscope back andwilldomalaria testing at home in Mae
SalitKee. The clinicsit waspreviously used in are nowin DKBA
temritory.

Allwent well in Mae Sariang. | taught some of Gyi Gyi'shealth
worlers, checked stained malalia slides, and more microscopes
he hasthere, on Thursdayandwe retumed to Mae Sot on Friday.

| pentSaturday with Dr Jonathan Nield in hisKarenvillage clinic teaching hismicroscopist howto
usethemicroscope we gavethem. They willalsobe bring inblood snearsfrom surrounding areason
both sides ofthe border fortesting.

DrJonathan gave me all the contact detailsfor buyingArtesunate through afriendin Hanoi. He took
meto catch the nightbusto Bangkokon Friday night.

Thetrip to Vietham went well, Hanoi wasmuch biggerthan lexpectedandtakes alongtime to getto
and out of the city centre, there s2sem to be millionsof mototbikeseitherfilling the roads orparked
andtakingup mog of the available roadside space, but lots ofbuses, trucksand carsincluding taxis
and three wheel motorand pedal bike taxistoo.larived there on Sunday aftemoon andfound the
cafe belonging to Mrs Hang, the lady who could arange to buy Malaria medicine forus. There was
noone who could speakEnglish. but hersister who wasworking there contacted herandwe had a
vely pleasant ime with MrsHangand hersisterand mother She managedtoget me 600 treatment
packsofl2 Artesunate tabletsforMalaria for $420. Ifwe could genuine Artesunate the same asthis
foruse ontheborderin Thailandthe same numberwould cost$2,300.1 ¢ayed ina hotel very near
their Café, itwasgood and onlycod $20 per night. The medicine was't takentothe hotel until
Tuesday morning,and MisHang organised some sightseeing for me on Monday and Tuesday
moming.

Iflew backvia Bangkokto ChiangMaionWednesday and unfortunately had aboxof360 of the
medicine packsconfiscated by Thai Customs. | gave the documentationforthe confiscated onesto
Partnersin ChiangMaiand they were ableto getthem backfor 10,000 Baht. Theyand Free Buma
Rangerswill use themto treatdrug resistantMalariaamongrefugeesand IDPsin many areasin
Buma. Overall, including the extrathey paid, thishasstill worked outvery cheap forgenuine
Artesunate - $1.26/12 tab pack compared with $3.83if they could getitin Thailand.

Nowthat | have the procedure sorted out, it will be much easerin future. | waslooked after very well
byMrs Hang and herfamily, ChrisDolan atPartnersinMae Sot said the only problem thistimewas
coming through Immigration in Chiang Maiinstead of Bangkok.

I bought sulphurforthe school, and the gainand other microscopy thingsEm needs, in Chiang Mai
onthe way backto the border, she and LerBwey will lookat Malaria sidesfrom the Mae Salit areaat
Napoleon and Em'shome in Mae SalitKee.

SMRU have gopped doingclinicsin Mae Salit,andthe IDP dinicsin Buma where LerBweyworked
inare now in enemyteritory.

Iwent to SMRU inMae Sot onFriday to getsome new positive Malariaslidesforteaching. Dr Rose

McGready there,who looksafter deliveriesand Pre and Postnatal care inthe SMRU hositalinMae
Larefugee camp, toldmethey are seing a definite decreasein Malariaon the border.

After another Fridaynightbustrip to Bangloklflew outforhome on Feb 27th.



ARMS Darwin Annual Report 2011
By Jen Keatch

ARMS Darw inis grateful for the on-going support and
gifts for projects in Timor Leste. Funds have regularly
been sent for the Health and Nutrition project in Sidara
w hich assists mothers w ith young babies as w ell as
the elderly in this village.

Kid’'s Ark School in Hera now has 198 children in
attendance from Pre-school up to Grade 4. Donations
of toys, educ ational supplies, handcrafted w ooden
toys and school uniforms have again been of great
assistance to provide for the children attending Kid's
Ark School. These children are healthy and w ell and
appreciate the opportunity to attend schooland receive
a nutritious meal each day at this school in their local
community of Hera, East Timor.

Teams regularly come through Darw in as they travel
over to Timor and also provide volunteer assistance for
the various projects in these communities.

The toilet project in Weberek has now been completed
successfully with most families in the village
participating and taking responsibility for the building of
the bathroom and toilet buildings for each home.

Another successful project in Weberek is the micro-
enterprise group for w omen. These w omen are
designing, sew ing and hand stitching items w hich can
be sold in Timor or to groups passing through. This
project has been handed over to the group w ho meet
twice w eekly in the community and also w ork on
individual projects at home.




RESCUENET

RescueNet Activity Report
By Mark Cockburn

RescueNet (RN) hasbeen extremelybusy on an international front since our last report.

Asyou are probablyaware, RNresponded to the Haiti ciisis, withaninternational Team consisting of four
membersfrom Europe, two from Americaand three from Australia. We combined with Mercy Worksfor
part of the ime and with the Universty of Miami, and all totalled we worked with hundredsof people and
even savedthe life ofone person whohadbeen trapped underhouse rubble fortendays!

Inthe abovementioned report, | made mention thatin November of 2010, we would be conductingan
inaugural meeting of delegatesfrom Europe, US andAusdraliato establishan International Council. This
Council (whichis directly reponsible to the Global Leadership Team) has nowcomeinto effect andits
role isto gandardise procedures, protocols, polices, etcand have oversight ofall present and future RN
Regional Councils.

We also combinedwithMaiine Reach and senta small Team into Christchurch New Zealand following
the first earthquale there. Asa St John Ambulance officer, our NZ Coordinator Richard Bettsled that
Teamandagain theyministeredtohundredsofpeople.

Inresponseto the Japanese earthquake and following tsunami, we sent two membersinto Japan tosee
ifitwas possible to get permission fora full Team response but sadly due to Japanese Government
restrictions we were unableto respond on that occasion.

However, we are still currently keeping a close eye on the eventsin Libya and Syria for a possible
response.

Training-wise, inMay 11 we ran our first, and very successful RN Training course at the new Marine
Reach Training Centre inNewZealand, and hope to pick up atleastfour more members.

RNin Europe will be running theirfirst Training Course in Switzedandin late September, and RNinthe
Stateswill be conducting their next course in October.

Allin all, we have enjoyed averysuccessful year andlookforward to evengreaterthingsin the coming
months!



ARMS Perth Report
May 2010 - April 2011
By Elsbeth McClure

Community Dev elopment Programme (CDP)

We have had abusy and fruitful yearwith the Community Development
Programme. Despite the fact that our staff numbershave been lower,we
have been able to serve the most familieseverin thislast12 month period!
We've served 184 familiesin 94 suburbs in Petrth!

We have been able todo this with the help other YWAM staffand
communityvolunteers. We continue to have great favourwith both
govemmentand non-govemmentorganization, with referralsfrom 50
differentorganizations.

Sincethe beginning ofthe programme in 1988, we have assiged 1,935
familiesin Perth!

A struggling mother

“Lad yearwe wentto £e a woman whose home had been brokeninto
and robbed. Vandalscame andbashed down herdoor bashing herand
leaving herwith extreme fear and not willing to venture out ofthe house.
When| mether, she had alot of fear,emptinessanda cluttered house.
Veryquiet, struggling to eat anything and veryclosed. | chatted withher
andtoldher about my ownlife. After manyvisits, | managed to get herto
walkout of thehouse anddown the dreet fora walk Isaid goodbye to
hernot knowing if Iwould see heragain. But thisyear Idid, about five
monthslater. | wentto her house and she was totally different, like
something had changed withinher. She didn'tseem asfearful. Helping
people get backon theirfeet again, isa greatpriviledge with thiswork.

Aletter from an ARMS client'srelatives

“Dear Members of ARMS, Thank you so much forcoming and deaning
David’sunit. You did afantasticjob and the unit looks great. You have
taken abig burden off our shoulders, we arenotin very good health ourselves, and find it difficult to come
andhelp Davidas much as wewould like. Yourassistanceis very deary appreciated.

Neighbour Care

Thisyear has been ayearof lidly egablishing NeighbourCare.
Providence Church has taken onand cared for 6 familiesin the city.
They have nowexpresedintered in more of theirpeople training and
commencing ministry in thisarea! So that'sgreatnews.

We also have a couple ofother churcheswho are expressing intereg in
the NC training.

Altogetheritsbeen a busyyear
with the ministry leadersbeing
inandout, marriages babies
and outreaches....But God hasbeen faithful andthe minigry
continuesfrom strength to strength!




Medical Boomerang
Nepal October 31— November 23 2010

Thisteam had 14 people- several nurses, 4 pimaryhealthcare
workersand 2 doctors(one of whom wasalso a phamacist).

We had a greatoutreach. Nepal isso beautiful.

Ministry:

Wehad atotal of 12 clinics. They wereheld in a variety of
places— schools,churches, a run down dinic and a mobile
clinicwhere we walked fom house to house offeting
healthcare. know that these peoplewill be followed up.

We worled in Kathmandu, and then moved west and were
situated insome of the more remote areas. It wasa wonderful
opportunity for us to see some of the contrasts ofNepal.
Inthe majority ofthe clinics we had many helperswho were
able totranslate forus. We would splitup, in pairsor
singulally,and with the help of a translator, talkto people about
theirneeds. We would thengive appropriate education and
medicines.

Overall: We gave healthcareto 1185 people and educationto
838 people.

A wordfrom some of the volunteers; One ofthe thingslhave
appreciated about being ona Medical Boomerang mission trip
fromPerth islearning the principle of multiplication. Ihad
been on several previous tiips where Iwas the onlymedical
person ordoctor andsaw allthe patients myself. My firstteam
leader, Clare, said “But whatabout nultiplication andteaching
others what you know?” It has been a joytocome on 6 Med
Boomtripsand to workwith nurses, radiologytechs, PHC
workers, ambulance attendants and Red Cross workers. God
has blessed meand Ilove being part of a team. Sue

Forme, asaprimaryhealth care workerwho works longterm

ina developing nation, | have reallyenjoyedthe opportunityto
wolk alongside of doctors and nurses and otherhealth care professionalson the Med Boomtrip. lhave
learned so much fromthemand Ifeel that Inow have more to offer the poor communities where Ilwork
long tem. Christine



Simple Health Care in Marromeu, Mozambique
By Melisa Birch

Promoting basic health education using Smple health
messages. Workng with the government, local health care
wolkersand/or communitymembersto attain a measurable
decreasein illnessand death over 24 months.

Wedo thisthrough an initial seminar The trainees do follow-up
with teaching twice aweekin theirlocal communities. Health
care trainersvisitafter6 months for futher training andto
measure the goal.

Seminar in Marromeu, Mozambique for two weeks

Topics:

How do welearn

Nutrition food groups)
BabysFirstFood (weaning foods)
Anaemia

Hand Washing and Hygiene
Diarhoeaand ORS
Coughand Cold
FeverReduction

10Danger Signsin Pregnhancy
Feeding a SickChild

Nutrition in Pregnancy

Seminar participants:18

Asasimple health careteam fom Perth we worked alongside the IPHC andworked with YWAM
Marmromeu.

Wehad 18 participantsand 15who regularlyattended the seminar and received packagesat the end of
the seminarwith thebooketsand postersforeachtopic covered. We ranthe seminarout of a
classoom in the hospital whichisa 45 min walkfrom theywam bas. The £minarran for 3hours
each afternoonfor 2weelks. Many ofour €minar participants had been involved with coursesin YWAM

The patticipants were given some time to practice teaching the health topicscovered usngpicture
pogersfororal learners. Theywent throughout the hospital and taught variouspatientsand relativesof
patientsin the differentwards The studentsreallytooka hold of these opportunitiesandwere eagerto
teach. Attimesitwas difficult to callthem all backto the classto continue with thelessons.

Thehospital location wasa bit of achallenge astherewasnotmuch space in the classroom forour
dramasandinteractive teaching style but we improvisedusing and outside grassarea. Aswell,the
number of topicswe covered were alotforthe amountof time we had. Ourhostwill follow up withthe
participantsto do further teaching were there wasn full understanding of the information covered.
Some of the participantshave already put into practice teaching othersthe lessonsthey learned, usng
their posters One young man hasbeenregularlygoing into a nearbycommunityto teachthemthe
varioustopicsand even demongrated the making of Oral rehydration solution and hasbeen ableto
providethat fora familyin need. Anotherwoman who wasa part of the seminar, and who volunteers
with YWAM, wentalong withthe IPHCto villages inthe delta region and would bring her Simple Health
Care posterswith her. In one of these situationsshe wasable to teach a young motherhowto take
care ofthe cough and cold that her child had.

Along with unning the seminar, duringthe morningswe were able to do ministryboth inthe hospital
andin the community. Some of usfrom the SHC team, alongwithsome IPHC students/gaff, would
volunteerin the hoital, doing rounds, doing primaryhealth care, and visiting the patients. We got
involvedin wound care,immunizationsand babyweighing, caring forthe malnourichedbabies, and even
paticipatedin somebirthsinthe labourward.



Simple Health Care — Inhassunge, Mozambique -May 2011, 2 weeks

By Melisa Birch

Participant numbers: Morning Class- 10 Aftemoon
Class- 30

We were welcomed ontoan island called Inhassungein
Mozambiqueto teach Simple Health Care. These s£minars
arefororal leamers. Theteachingtechnique and styleis
specifically directed toward these typesof learnersinthe
developingworld. Ourhosthad attendedthefirst seminarwe
did inMaromeu, andthenwe accompanied usto
Inhassunge. The team onthisisland had already garted a
milkprogram for HIV+ mothersas well asa ministry to take
care of the widows. Theteam hasavision forprimary health
care on the idand and the establishment of a laboratory. Our
host carries the passion for this vision and has been tusting
foraway to do piimary health care onthe island, he has
alreadystarted with primary health care by cleaning the feet
ofa couple of womenwith Filariasisand we were able to
teach him some wound care.

Witch doctors control mog of the health careon thisisland
asthere isverylittle medical helpwith one hospital and two
doctorsfor 100,000 people. Thegovernmentisunableto
invest ordoes notinvestin thisisland and the needs ofthe
people. Thisisseen through the lackofdevelopment onthe
island even though itisonly a short (15 min)ferry ride from
Quelimane on the mainland (amajorcity in Mozambique).
Ourparticipantswere very grateful forourwillingnessto come
andteach themasmany Mozambicans will not come tothe
island, it isan ignored place due to the strong presence of
witchcraft.

Apatt from the firstday of the seminar, weran boththe
morning and aftemoonseminarina snall hut on the propetty
where ourhods lived. The participants came from neatby,
some asfar asa 45 minute bike ride away. We had 10
people whoregularly atended the morning seminar and 30
people who regularly attended the aftemoon seminar.

Therewere many traditional beliefsthatcame upthroughout the time that the people practiced asdirected
by the witchdoctor, such as, lemonsare bad foryour blood, bananascause yourteeth torot, eggscause
worms, and colostrum (firstbreast milk) makesyour baby’sstomach swell and the baby can die.
Traditionsare hardto change, but we keeptelling the tuth onessentials suchas“ALL breastmilk isgood
foryoubaby”, then children don't needlessly haveto die.

The participants were all eagerto leam and some asked good quedions seeking more in-depth
knowledge. Ourhostwillbe able to do furtherteachings with the participantsand they ®lected certain
participantsto receive the seminar packages(withthe bookletsand posters),theyare already preparing to
doa second seminaron the otherside of the island.

We heard stories from the participantsof them putting into practice the thingswe were teaching suchas,
waystorelieve cough and cold symptomsand hand washing as well asteachingtheir familiesand
neighbourswhen they wenthome each day.

Oneof ourparticipantsshared hisgratitude: “lwantto thank you forcoming to thisisland...Sinceyou
came lhave been thinking how can Ichange the Island. Fromthe first lesson Iwasbeginning to realize
that we have so much death and disease here because people don’teatright. Evennow Ican seein
myself adifference inhow Ithought before and how | will do different in the future.”



ARMS China Report
By Will McGirr

Orphanage Empowerment Program

Staff Training
ARMS hasbeen providingtraining for the workersat Jiang Jin SWito
tryto improve the quality of care forthe children. Two of the workers
have continued to receivetraining in basic physical therapy and
special

educationfordisabled children. Inaddition, all ofthe ARMS
wolkershave undergone trainingto try and ensuretheliving
atmogphere and care forthe children isupbuilding and
healthy.

Thishasincluded trainingin

*health and hygiene

*behavior management

*good workethic

*communication

*working with special needschildren

Training for treating congenital club feet
We were able to take the doctorfrom Fuling SWI with us
toGulinto have hertrainedalong with ourworlersin howto
non-surgically fix childrenwho are born with dub feet.After thiswe
togethertreated the first baby (Fu Le Fen)toreceive this highly successful
method of castingand bracing from that orphanage. We hope to be able to offer

thistreatment forother childrenin the Chongging municipal area who have clubfeet. FulLe
Fenwasadopted byan Americanfamily in January 2011.

LongLong, 3, (here with avolunteer) Moses,4,was severelymalnourished Afew ofourinternational staff and
wasassessedand successfullytreated and in need ofcleft palate surgerywhen volunteerswith fourofthe children who
for polycystickidney disease through we met him. He has thiived in foster have been in long termfoster care this
ARMS and was quicky adopted by a care for these fouryearsand is awaiting

) . ) ear. Jan 2011.
local Chinese family. adoption. y uary



Education Opportunities for Disabled Children
We have been able to facilitate 2 olderchildren going to specialized schoolsfor children with special
needs.

LiJing Jing (Age 16, F) has cerebral palsythateffects her movement, but
not her cognitive ability She isnowattending school in Nanning. She
returnseach school holiday to the orphanage. At the school she is
leaming self help sills, computing, music, and literacy sklls. We hope
afterreceiving thistraining shewill be able to have heradultlife inan
independentliving situation.

“LiJing Jing hasreallygrown in confidence while shehasbeeninher

newschool. Before she had noreal exposure tolife outside ofthe LiJing Jing, now attending
orphanage. Now her teacherssay that she isa blessing to herschool. aschool in Naning
Shehas leamedhow to confidently direct taxi drivers, and start to specializingin care for

venture out. She isstarting to seethat there isa purpose for her life,and  childrenwith cerebral palsy
shecan hopeformorethen tolivein the omphanage the rest of herlife.”

Yuan zhi Meng (Age 16, F)came to the orphanage at age 13 having
received little education oropportunityasshe iscompletely blind. Sheis
now supportedto attendthe Chongging School forthe Blind.

We hopeto provide more oppottunitiesfor childrenlike thisin the future.
We have also provided some training for ateacher for the children who
live atthe JJSWI,and hope to have spedialistsprovide trainingfor
teaching children with pecial needsin the Fuling SWIin the future.

Yuan Zhi Meng, how
attendingChongqing
School for the Blind

JinFu Xiao, 5, received treatmentand
sumgery for hypospadias, spentjust over
2 years in foster care, andthis yearwas
adopted by an Americanfamily. Here he
iscelebrating his5th birthday athomein
theU.S.

2010 - 2011 Statistics
Children who benefitted from fogter care

- ———

Children placed nto long term foster care

::.mam adoptad (locally & internationally)

P—————=




Medical assistancefor those in need.

We have been privilegedtofacilitate the medical treatmentof manychildrenin2010 and 2011.
Children have received treatmentforvaiousconditions some of whichare documentedin the Foster
Care Register below. Some of this hasbeenonetime surgery and someincludes ongoing physical
therapy to help the children receive the maximum possible growth and health.

Inaddition, we have helpedto provide funding orconnectionsfor 5 otherchildren:two needing cleft
palate aurgetry, one child needing reconstiuctive surgeryof the anus, one needingearsurgery,and

one needing heartsurgety.

We have organized for 2teamsof international paediatric medical profesionalstocome to asess
and help with physotherapy forthe disabled children.We have alsobeen ableto get
andintemationally.

consultationsfor manyunusual disabiliiesboth in Chongging,

Foster Care _
In 2010we placed 6 childrenin f.
long-tem foger care and had 2 L
children in short termfoster carefor
medical treatment. In 2011 we have 1
placed3

children in long term foster care,and
had?2 children in short term fostercare

for medical treatment. Two ofthese
childrenwere adoptedlocally and 2 were
adopted intemationally.

We have ob<erved thatchildrenplaced inlong
tem fodercare have benefited fromthistype of
familylove andinteraction. They have all
increased in theirlanguage andsocial skills as
well asgrowingand developingwell. The foster
familiesinvolved have allbeen volunteersand,
addefrom the allotted orphanage stipend, have
notreceived payment for their ervices. ARMS
hasprovided assessmentof families, followup
vidgts, and communicationwiththe SW'sabout
the progressof the children.

Wefocuson findingfoster care for childrenwho
have medical conditionsthat makeit hardfor
them to be adequately caredforinan
institutionalized setting.

We e thisasanincredible opportunity to
intervene in the livesof children in need of
specialist care. Some ofthe children were
retumedtothe orphanage after receiving
needed treatment, orifafterasessment it was
foundthat the childrenhada

“When Jin Fu Hu (pictured here) first
ameintofoger care he wasextremely underweightand
atfour yearsold gill unable to walk

Oweralong period oftime of seeingdifferent doctorswe
eventually learned thathe hadwater on the brain and his
pituitarygland had been 90 damaged that there was'’t
much expectancythat hewould be able toproduce the
growthhormoneshe neededtogrow. Hisdiligentfoger
parentsworked veryhard and over two yearsof care were
able tosee him startwalking. Desite what the doctors
said about hisgrowth we have seen him startto growout
of hisclothes and shoes.He iscompletely differentfrom
the scared, angry, shy little boy that we brought out of
the ophanage. Now heisfull of joyand affection,
reachingout to be held and cuddled.”



Foster Care Register 2010-2011

Reason for foster care Length of
Name, age, sex placement fo care Current status
1 oz i Gevere malnutrition, and cleft 2 Btill in foter care, awaiting
palette surgery . adoption
Him o . .
3 Burgery for spinabifida and Btill in foster oare, awaiting
B: 2010,/10/28 !
2 ? 10730/ tethered epinal cord el it adoption
i HBypospadiae testing, treatment,
L { ] 1 3 N
3 B: 2008/04,/02 R 2 ' years Adopted to family in TBA
ik 2 In long term foster care. Able
4 E’E:MUHIB W@fﬂhﬂfmm 3 years now to walk, do sign language,
- il e and interacts well with people.
5 .
Treatment for ahronie ekin
B: 2008,/07/08 1 i
B E’ /0T fition — (Tahthyosis) 1'% years Btill in foster care.
8 yﬁr% i R 4 monthe Adapted by Chinege family
PED — Polyeystic Kidney dicease
8 i :
7 ?ﬂ:mmﬁwn mmﬁ;ﬁtﬂmmm 4 monthe Adopted by Chinese family
i
8 B: 2008,/04/18 Testing and treatment for Hep B 1 week Back iIn JJ BWI
S ) N
Heart defect Etill in foeter oare, awaiting
- 3010, 01 '
8 F‘B i and oleft palette surgery B dcpkinen
i Baak to JJ WL, died 3 monthe
10 B: 2010/02/10 Assessment for heart defeot 1 week Eﬂ
1 ﬂ?ﬂlﬂfﬂﬂﬂﬁ freatment — oasting and bracing |1 week assegement + Adopted to URA family
’ for club feet 8 months in care
[}
Treatment for severs burne on
12 E]r&am Fi G e 2 month In long term foster care
=
Assesement for Heart defeot, "
B 2008, 10,
13 F /10,20 2 daye Back in J.J 8WI
1 E?ﬂllﬁﬂﬂﬂﬂ Born premature and undersize, 1 th Btill in foster care, working to
: Down's Syndrome T Iput on weight, awaiting adoption
HE
16 E":WWIE Aceesement and treatment for 2 dayE Back in J.J BWI
epllepsy
i Currently in foeter care
b Accesement for leg development | | oo 2CCEEELE T i ving ongoing casting and
18 B: 2010,/12/14 repently placed in : it
iy foster care @ weels | PLULOMCTAEY, SWalting
adoption




(Volunteer Training
There are many
kindhearted Chinese
peoplewhowanttohelp
improve thelives of the
children inthe SWI's. We
provide training forthose
peoplewho are willing to
commit themselveslong
tem tovolunteerworkin
the SWI's. We will recruit,
assessapplicant
suitability,and then
supervise groupsof
volunteersto help in the
ophanages.

Webelieve thishas
provideda valuable
interactionbetween the
childrenand thes people
from the community, as
people have generoudy
helpedwith theirexpertise
(omeare health
professonals),or have
becomeinvolved with
fodercare, orhave
provided help for pecific
children.

There have been 19longterm
local volunteers working with
usoverthe last 12 months.

r

4 Foreigners And Their Chinese Orphans”
ARMS Foster Home Featured In Local Magazine

T e
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Asa reault of the friendship ofone of our international staff with a womanworkng
fora localfashionmagazine, our fosterhome wasfeatured inan artide in their
November2010issue. Asa consequence of thispublicity, we have had an influx
oflocal people interestedin our work. We have had many peoplevisit the foger
home in respon< to the article. Some peoplejust want to helpany way theycan
so they busy themselveswithdishesorlaundry. Othersare looking forachance
to find out whatitislike tocare forchildren like oursand smply want totalk.
Most people have never had any contactwith an orphan norhave they any idea of
the number of orphanagesin our city. Thisarticle hasgiven usan incredible open
doorto make known the needsof ophansin China and introduce people tothe
opportunitiestheyhave to help.

Internatio nal Staff

Stephanie Webster (manager)

Rachel McGir (Coordinator)

SarahMoodie (Children'sAdvocate)

Jamie Kaihoi (Educationand Training SewicesCoordinator)

International Volunteers Who Live Locally
TamaraWalter (Physiotherapist)

Joann Chua (Nurse)

RachelWay (Art Therapig, Early Childhood Educator)
Paula Dixon (Midwife)




Reporton Ark International (Thailand)
By Sopo Fakaua

BasicHealth Care Program

We hav e had aregular of 30 kids attending our program.
We had hosted a Christmas fun activity day forthekids
to just to play games and role play s about 60 kids
attend. Since February of 2010 we hav e mov ed our
meeting place from the side streets inthe Slum to the
‘Kings Park’ which is only as short walk forthe kids and
it's been an awesome loc ation to host our basic health
care teaching and. We also provide at the end of the
program healthy snack, milk and a Multi-vitamin. We
now hav e another community in the same area join us,
which now we hav e 45 kids each W ednesday
afternoons.

Basic Health careteaching

Sportprogram

Called Changing Liv es Forev er ‘Naksuu Tigers’ is the name of the rugby team - its a rugby academy that we
partner with another rugby legend from Canada. Together we want to empower these kids and encourage
them also through discipleship and character building. We ran a Sports camp November last year and
introduced the concept of this rugby academy - we had over 150 kids atthe 2 day Sport Camp. We started
the Naksuu rugby this March and we have 5 communities that get togetherfor this; we provide transportation
to pick up the kids and also to return them back home. One of them is an orphanage that is a Government
run boys home. Wehav e an av erage of 80 kids that attend our program - we do provide breakfast, snacks and
lunch forthem. We hav e started once a week teaching English at this Boy s home that attends our Sports

program.

Counseling Seminars

The last seminar that we ran in Thailand was late July until mid August last 2010 where we hosted a
seminar on ‘Howto counsel Children that have been sexually abused?” We hosted the first onein
Bangkok and 35 people attended and then we hosted one up in Chiang Mai and we had 60 people attend
the seminar. We then ran our first seminar inthe border of Cam bodia and we had a huge turn out, we
didn’t expect 72+ people attended - we only confirmed 25-30 people, but coming close to the day it started
we had more then we ex pected.




CAMBODIAN HARVEST DRIED FRUIT CO. LTD.

DIRECTOR’S ANNUAL REPORT
(Formerly RTC Cambodia)

By Marion Fromm

The past twelve monthshave seen somesignificant
improvement in the busnessside of Cambodian Harvest
Dried FruitCo. Ltd. For eight months, we were blessed
with excellent financial advice from Benkorp Asia. They
estimated that byincreasing production and salesfour
timesitwould bringustobreak even point. We
disontinuedworkng with Benlorp at the end of
December, because of their harsh

attitude concerning our focusonbusinessas mission and
theirrequest that we abandon our ministryinvolvement.
Theirpoorrelationship skill with peoplewith disabilitywas
demeaningto our staff. Asminigry to theland mine
survivorsand giving them employmentisthe purpose of
ourbusgness, we could not agree with thisrequed, so we
partedon amicabletems.

ManagementTeam: Bunthoeun Cheng, Administrator, Bunthoeun Thong, Factory
Manager, Marion Fronm, Director, Ny Sun, Packaging supervisor, BunLeng Lay,
Factory Supenisor &Leang Ouk, Assistant Factory Manager

Factory Production
BunthoeunThongtackdedwhat wasneededto
improve the production flowand streamline
adtivitiesand increased the amount offruit
processed per month by four timesthroughout
themango season.To achievethis, twonew
dehydratorswere installed eachwith one third
increased capacity. With sixdehydratorsrunning
twenty four hours a daywe were able toprocess
sixty three tonsof fresh mangos, resulting

in 13tons of Glacé Mangoin stockforthe
comingyear. We commendan amazing
achievement by the staff, whoworled longand
hardto achieve thisreault. However, thisresult
cameata huge costin purchasing fresh fuuit,
sugarand packaging matetials. Donationsdo notnearly cover such a production leveland we were
blessed by aprivateloan of $45,000 to sugdainthislevel of production for the mango

season. Thisloan isbeingrepaid at $500 permonth.

Tooffsetthisincreased expense, our sales forthe period have morethan doubled, but salesmust
increase much morein thisyear tocoverthisexpense and perhapsbringusto abreakeven point by
early next year.

Administration, Sales and Marketing

Bunthoeun Cheng hasproved tobe averycapableAdministatorand Nouniscapably actingas
Accountant,under the supervisionof Bunthoeun Cheng, while she finishesherAccountancyDegree.
Three new salesstaffwere hired in Januaryand February. Sreyny and Thanyhave degreesin Marketing
andBunis completing hisdegree in the comingyear. Sreyny isresponsible formarketing in Phnom
Penh.Bun

isresponsible for marketingin Sionoukville aswell as delivelriesand debtcollection in Phnom Penh.
Thanyisour receptionist and Factory Door saleslady. Thisteam isworking very well and they quicky
fitedin withall the staff even though none of them have adisability. [thasprovedimpossible to find
university trained staff with adisability. We are hoping that increased education will resultin more
educationbeing available to the poor and ultimately university education will become available to the



disabled. We are pleasedto report that there is
lessdiscrimination forthem in the workplace
becausethe Government hasrequested that
businessesemploy at leastone person with a
disability. Salesin the past yearincreased
79.4%, which isexcellent for the local
economy. Expornt salesare dueto begin to
Japanand Singapore earlyin July. Many
expensive documentshave been purchased
fomthe

Ministry of Healthto give accreditation for
export. More documentsare needed from the
Ministry of Industryand the Ministty of

Commerce before we can sendthe first ordersoversas. Ingectionsby the Ministry of Health andthe
Ministry of Labor have taken place successfully. All staff hadto beregistered and interviewed bythe
Ministry of Laborto completethis process. It all seems endless pointlessand an exercise in
Government fundraisng and corruption!

Seim Reap Office

Kimsan and Tepy are doing awonderful job of
marketingin Seim Reap and they haveinceased
oursalesthere consderablyoverthe past year.

Sixth Anniv ersary Party

On October 1stwe had a staff party to celebrate six
yearsof ministry to theland mine survivors. We
usedthisoccasion togive Awardsof Excellence to
four gaff, Ny, Leang,BunLengandHeng. They have
eachserved for five yearsormore. We will institute
a yystem of honoring de<erving staff on anannual
basis.

Board Members
Alice McCann became Chaimanofthe RTCBoard in Adelaide, butsubsequently resigned because of
herhusband’sill health. Dean Paterson succeeded
herasChaiman and he hasfilled that ole very
capably. Wendy Radford joined the Board when
Alice resgned. Wendyhashad years ofexperience
in leadership roles with YWAM and we are blessed
bythe expertise shebrings. Olivia Harman also
joinedthe Board and she ismanaging the website
and helping with fundraisng. John Wilkinsalso
joinedusand he bringsengineering expertise and
busnessmanagement skillstothe Adelaide Board.
Needlesstosay, the Board ismuch strongerand
better equipped to assistthe ministry inCambodia.

New Factory property

Twenty two tons of mangoswere hanested fromthe
farm and none of the fruit waslost because of rain
damage thisyear. Because ofa much coolerdry
season the treesproduced two crops, whichmade
production easier, asall the fruitdid not ripen
atonce, asinthe previousyear. Electricity was
recentlyconnected to the fam, which will make
pumpingwater from the wellsmuch easier forthe
farm gaff. Two famerswere employed, and Theng
livestherewith hiswife andbaby. There hasbeen
no money, asyet, toerecta much needed
seculity fence at a cost of $45,000.




Finances

Donationsto Reverse The Curse have improved a little over
the past year butnot nearly asmuch aswe are believing
for, althoughthe Lord continually suppliesall ourneed.
Marion Winn managesthe financial administrationin
Adelaide and she isdoinganexcellent workkofsending
cashtranders throughto ARMS and Cambodia. World
Reliefhasbeen prompt to send our taxdeductible
donationson to usand we thank

KrisThompsonfor hisassistance with thisand reportsto
World Relief on our behalf. Onlya few snall donations
comein forthe newfactory sofar.

StaffNews

Three newland mine disabledfactory staff usjoined
usthisyear, Rady and Sopheap as security gaff, and
Neang asa factory worker. Sekim joined usasa
cleanerbut she isnotdisabled. It wasimpossible to
find alady with disability to do such heavy cleaning.
BunLengwas promoted to Factory Supervisor last
Octoberand Leang isAssistant Factory Manager. Ny
isPackaging Supervisorand she is assisted by
Leang, Neng and Pesay. Heng isnow Farm Supervisor
aswell asworkingasmy driver and handyman.
Sophal’shushand Chi wasdignissed at the end of
April for grossdisreect to the management.
Marion’sPersonal Assistant, Mary, wasasked to leave
atthe end of May because she wasstaning herself to
death, to the point where she wasno longerable tofunctionin the office. We hospitalized herand
gave hermuch counsel and time off to recover, but to no avail. We finally had to askher familyto
come and take herhome and take responsbility forher. Thiswasa very painful ime for all the staff,
whodidtheirbestto encourage herto eat.

EnglishLessons

Judith Stanfield left forNew Zealandin July and she
wasreplaced for three monthsin March byKay
Draggett from Queensland. Prior to her arrival, we had
beenunableto getavolunteerteacher to replace
Judith. Kay will not bereturning tousso we areonce
againlookingfor aqualified teacherto volunteerto
replace her permanently. Staffmembers have been
taking lessonslocally afterworkwhile dasses are not
available here. Kay wasan excellent and experienced
teacherwho really improved the gandard of Englishin
allthe staff.

| offer sincere thanksto ARMS andthe Reverse The Curse Board for all their hard work supporting us
inprayerand fundraising. We lookfomward to more of you vidtingusandseeing foryourselvesthe
great things the Lod isdoing here.



ARMS Shoalhaven Report
By Helen Esdaile

Ourgoal atARMS Shoalhaven isto offernon-institutional help
and hope topeopledoingittoughin the Bomaderryarea.

We are condantlyamazedat the way God providesfor our needs
and usesusto supply the needs of others. We offer free meals
on Friday nights and Tuesday lunch times and these have
becometimes when we can relax with people in the community
andtalk aboutissuesthat are importantto them. The mealscan
now be fullyfunded from donations andthe proceeds from the
community store.

Thecommunity store isopentwice a weekto provide cheap
groceriesfor peopleon lowincomes. We obtain most of the items
in the store from FoodbankNSW. Some groceriesare donated by
local churchesand individualsand we supplement these with
groceriespurchased locally. We make them available tomembers
ofthe communitystore fora smallhandling fee.There are many
struggling families inthispart of Bomaderry and the sore makes
asignificantcontribution tothe well-being of many of these
families.

Aspeople come intothe house that we call Number 6 many are struckby the atmosphere of
acceptance and warmth that they expelience.We are aware that this isthe life of Jesusamong
those of uswhoare following him,and increasing numbers of ourguestsare makingthis
connection.

Thisyearwe have seen significant growth in mog of the areasthat we can asses— discipleship,
leadership, numbersof people using our facilities (especiallythe free meals and the community
store), people who have been helped outsidetheregularactivities numbersof people in various
growth groupsand in finances.

The membersof the communitystore and the wider community centred on Number6 come from
vely diverse backgroundsincluding ex-prisoners single parent families, people struggling with
alcohol, drugs and gambling and people with emotional and mental issuesandwe have seen
several make significant progressin dealing withissuesin their lives. We are disappointedto
see some make decisionsthatcause them furtherpainbut we continue toextend hospitalityand
acceptance to them.

We have awonderful team of volunteerswho all contribute both to the running of ARMS
Shoalhaven and to the atmosphere of acceptance thatcharacterises ourwork. For much ofthe
pad year David wasincreasingly ill, culminating in chemotherapy for lymphoma. Hewasin
hospital in Wollongong for the whole of April and Helen stayed in Wollongong for much of the
time and vidted him every day. In ourabsencethe
mealsand the community store continuedto
operate and in fact continued to grow through the
|leadership and commitment ofthe volunteers.

We are constantly conddering otherwaysto meet the
needsofpeople inthe Bomadeny

community but we haverecentlybeen challengedto
congdersending bicyclesto the newly

independent Republic of South Sudan. We have
begunthe processofcontacting relevantpeople

and looking at the feasibility of collecting and repairing
bikesand gettingtheminto South Sudan.

We’'llkeep you posted.




ARMS Townsville -Directors Report 2010-2011
ByKen Mulligan

Thispad year hasbeen a very fulfilling year, asthe ARMS Townsville office partnered withthe
YWAM Medical Ships—Australia & PNG Ship Tour to see some wonderful outcomes not onlyin
Australia, but also in PNG.

Australia Tour Totals

Number of people presentedto 50,000+
Number of people whotoured the ship 12,000+
Number of youth who heard the “Y/WANT TO LIVE"message 33,000+
Number of spectadescollected 24,000+
Number of school programs 140+

Numberofpeople thatheard the 1 WANT TO LIVE"message throughradio 4.2 Million
Numberof people whosaw*“ | WANT TO LIVE” message through televison 2.9 Million

Number of people reached by newsgaper 500,500
PNG Outreach Totals

Numberof villagesvisited 16
Numberof Primary Health Care Services 1,643
Number of Dentigry Procedures Senvices 2,062
NumberofOptometry Clinic Services 1,500
Numberof Education Seminars 3,819
NumberofPreventative Health Resourcesdistibuted 6,113
Number of OphthalmologyProcedures 77
Number of Community DevelopmentProjects 64
TOTALNUMBER OF SERVICES PROVIDED 15,278

Oneof our highlightsofthe year wasseeing YWAM
Audralia receive the giftof the Pacific Linkmedical
vesel into itsnew home, Australial ARMS
Towngville assisted with the shipasit began its
joumey with a 16-porttouralong the ead coag of
Australia, assisting young Australiansand raising
awarenessto the needsin Papua NewGuinea.
Aftera shortbreakin Townsville, we sawthe
medical ship depart on its2-month medical, pilot
program to PNGin August/September. Itwas
incredible towitnessthe richnessof the culturesin
PNG. We were absolutelyblownaway bythe
diverse needsand opportunitiesto help.

Aslreflect on the pad year, ithasbeen a great yearforARMS Townsville lam
overwhelmed and gratefulathowmuch we were able to accomplishthrough
partnering with YWAM Medical Ships-Australia.

Ken Mulligan — Director



ARMS Canberra
Annual Report
2010 to 2011

ByDianne Clark

The mainfocus ofARMS Canbera isthe“Pantry”. The
Pantry was setup in July 2010. Thisisa ministry to
provide free or low cost food to the poorandneedy inour
area. Since openingwe have noticed a condderable
impact on notonly thosewho make use of our servicesbut
al onthe staff involved. We are openevery Thurgday
from 10.00am to 3.00pm. There are also some local
churcheswho have contributed financiallyaswell asgiving
food and otheritems.

We currently have 117 registrations Each registration
representsanything from asingle person toa family of8.
Weregularly have just under60 visitorsa week. The whole
YWAM base isinvolved either with unloading the truckand
filling the shelveson a Wedneglay or sening, talking to
andpraying forpeople on the Thurday. Ouraim isnot just
tofeed the people butto make themfeel welcome and
listento their stories.

Most come, not justto buy, but also to sitand have a
coffee with us. Some stayfor several hoursgiving usthe
opportunity to followup from week toweekto seehow
thingsare going. Often we are given the freedom to pray




Home of the Open Heart — Chiang Rai
2010 Report

By Penny Wilcox

Who: Childrenaffected byHIV/AIDS, HIV+ single motherswith
children, families in communitiesaffected by HIV/AIDS

How many: 3 mothersand 15 children. In the community we
have visited and asssted an additional 100 HIV+people

Staff: Penny Wilcox, 9 Thai staff and 2 foreign staff
Highlights of 2010:

All of ourchildrenare now attending thelocal village T hai
govemmentschool. Theycontinue to develop educationally and
manyof ourchildren hasbeen involved in local competitionsfor
English Language and Att and have received variousawardsfor
this.

The hospice continuesto move forward andthe building projectis
almost complete with worknow needed to befinished mostlyin
regardsto plumbing, electrical and then interior/fittingsfurnishings.

ACommunity ProjectsTeam wasnewly formed and beganto meet and move out asa team intothe
Chiang Rai community and beyond to vist those affected by HIV/AIDS. Thishasincreased ourlevel of
effectivenessto supportthe HIV clinics inthe two local hospitals.

We have sent outa Home of the OpenHeart Community Team to assistother ProjectLife/YWAM
Ministriesinthe Northem Regionwhowere affected either by floodsorwhoneededhelp with building
projects.

We were able to continue to networkwith the governmentauthoritiesand private agenciesin Chiang Rai
and even beyond the Northern Regionandalso to develop drongerrelationshipsat boththe Mae Chan
hospital and the Chiang Rai hosital through outCommunity ProjectsTeam.

Thai staff participated in anumber of Thai GovemmentInitiated training coursesrunthrough the Social
Welfare Department andincreased theirunderstanding oftheisaiesinvolved with both HIV/AIDS andthe

documentation necessary forwomen and orphansin Thailand.

We were indirect communicationwith two young pregnantwomen through the localARV clinicand
hospital and were ableto asdst and support them with theirmostimmediate needs.

AnEnglish language program wasstarted at the Chiang Rai hosital bothin the ARV clinicand
Children’sward. Thishasenabled usto continue to educate the wider community as to our pumpose
and facilitieshere atourHome and to help the saff educationallythroughteachingson Nutrition, Child
care and Healthy living practices.



Ministry Reports from Kids Ark in East Timor and ARMS Newcastle
were not received in time for the publication of these reports.




Audit Of Accounts

ARMS Auditors are

www.tak.com.au
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Australian Relief and Mercy Services Led

Statement about Donors Without Border Philanthropic Initiative

Inthe 2010/ 2011 financial year ARMS patticipated inthe Donors Without Border Philanthropic
Initiative which saw $430,000 worth of HIV/AIDS medicinesreceipted byARMS asin-kind donations,
and$1,820 receipted in cash donations. (These medicineswere later dishursed toa registered HIV/
AIDS project in Burundi.)

InDecember 2010,ARMS received notification fromtheAusdralian Tax Office (AT O)that they had
reservationsabout theinitiative and needed time to ascertain the detailsofthe arrangement so that
they could rule on itsappropriateness This wasa surpriseto ARMS astax rulings had beensought
and given bytheATO on the DWB arrangementbefore ARMS enteredinto thisphilanthropicinitiative.

From midJune 30, 2010 ARMS had ceased to receiptdonations for thisprojectand since December
2010 we have waited forthe AT O to confim itsposition on the matter. In July 2011 the ATO ruled that
itwould not supportthe arrangementin itscurrent form.

ARMS respectsthat ruling and haswithdrawn from the Donors Without Borders Philanthropic
Initiative.

Gladlywe can reportthatthe medicinesthatwere donated were distributed in Burundi by
Metamorphiclntemational through the auspicesofthe Global Development Group.

Itisforthisreasonthat theARMS audit documents that are published in thesereportsshow a highly
inflated income figure.

Inthese reports, the medicineshave beenreceipted asnon-monetary giftsand expended aspartof
'‘Other OverseasProject Cods inthe 2010-11financial year. The physical transfer of the medicines
toBurundi occurred inJuly 2011, but the financial expenditure was accrued toApril 2011. Thiscan
beseen in the Balance Sheet. On the one hand, the medicines are shown as'Inventoiies and,on
the other,they areinduded in'Trade and OtherPayables.

David Skeat
National Director



ADMINISTRATION COSTS
ARMS takes a 5%administration fee from all donations. This fee together with
separate fundraising aimed at increasing the administration budget helps us to
cover our administration costs without greatly impacting projects.

Our desire is to see as much money s possible pass onto the projects where it
is needed most.

A full copy of the ARMS audit of accounts for this financial year is

available from the ARMS National Office upon written request.
Write to;

PO Box 132 Port Kembla NSW 2505 - Australia.
info@arms.org.au
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Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited

ABN 84 008 643 258
Director's Report

Your directors present this report on the company for the financial year ended 30 April 2011.

Directors

The names of the directors in office at any time during or since the end of the year are:
David Skeat

Stephen Martin A herne
Peter Fitzroy Brownhill
Alice McCann

Kenneth Neil Mulligan
Thomas Charles Hallas
Dianne Margaret Clark
Matthew John Colwell
Jennifer Keatch

William John Knight
Kathryn Margaret Kennedy
Nicholas John Matthews

Operating Result

The loss of the company for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to:

Year ended Year ended
30 April 2011 30 April 2010
$ $

82,265.87 (16,825.19)

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the company during the course of the year were the provision or relief to persons in necessitous
circumstances.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

No significant changes in the nature of these activities or in the state of affairs of the company occurred during the
financial year.

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the company in
financial years subsequent to the financial year ended 30 April 2011.

No director has received or become entitled to receive, during or since the end of financial year, a benefit because of a
contract made by the company or a related body corporate with the director, a firm of which a director is a member or an
entity in which a director has a substantial financial interest. This statement excludes a benefit included in the aggregate
amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors shown in the company's accounts or the fixed salary of
a full time employee of the company, controlled entity or related body corporate.



Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited
ABN 84 008 643 258

Director's Report

Dividends

In accordance with the memorandum and articles of association of the company, no dividends were declared or paid since
the start of the financial year and no recommendation is made as to dividends.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

David Skeat
irector

Matthew/ohn Colwell
Director

Dated: 5oﬂ' q’ 7% o



Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited

ABN 84 008 643 258
Statement of Financial Performance
For the year ended 30 April 2011

Income

Donations and Gifts -Monetary
-Non Monetary
- National Office — Medicines

Investment Income - Interest Received

Other Income

Profit on Sale of Plan

Total Income

Expenses

Overseas Projects
Funds to overseas Projects
Other Overseas Project Costs

Funds to Domestic Projects

Fundraising Costs
Public

Administration
Total Expenses

Excess of Revenue over the expenses
Total changes in equity of the association

Funds available for future use at the beginning of the year

Excess of Revenue over the expenses

Funds available for future use at the end of the year

667.598.96

432,820.00

9,762.37

10,454.43

369.00

1,121,004.76

318,507.87
437.649.07

147.991.30

923.94
133,666.71

1.038,738.89

82,265.87
82.265.87

281,796.25
82,265.87
364,062.12

619,877.49

0.00

8,559.21

7,557.29

0.00

635.993.99

422,629.22
21,872.72

52,409.97

2,049.57
133.857.70

652.819.18

16,825.19
16,825.19

298.621.44
(16,825.19)
281,796.25

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.




Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited

Statement of Financial Position As At 30 April 2011

ABN 84 008 643 258

2011 2010
S $

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 359,457.10 268,295.59

Inventories 432.820.00 -

Financial assets 3,289.96 4690.33

Total Current Assets 795,567.06 272,985.92
Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 26,293.37 31,315.30

Other 0.00 0.00

Total Non-Current Assets 26,293.37 31,315.30

Total Assets 821,860.43 304,301.22
Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 457.798.31 22.504.97

Provisions 0.00 0.00

Total Current Liabilities 457,798.31 22,504.97
Non Current Liabilities

Payables 0.00 0.00

Other 0.00 0.00

Total Non Current Liabilities 0.00 0.00
Total Liabilities 457,798.31 22,504.97

Net Assets 364,062.12 281,796.25
Equity

Reserves 364.,062.12 281,796.25

Total Equity 364,062.12 281,796.25

The accompanying notes from part of these financial statements.



Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited
ABN 84 008 643 258
Table of Cash Movements for Designated Purposes
For the year ended 30 April 2011

. Cash available at
the beginning of Cash raised Cash disbursed Cash available at the

Comments
the year during the year ~ during the year end of the year
$ $ $ $

Designated Purpase A 83128 14543836 133,252.20 13,017.44
- Blue Sky
Designated Purpose ) ) - -
B - Other
Total for All Other 26746431 97556640  897,220.29 346,439.66
Purposes

TOTAL | 268,295.59 1,121,004.76 = 1,030,472.49 359,457.10

The accompanying notes from part of these financial statements.



Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited
ABN 84 008 643 258

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 April 2011

Note 1: Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements are a general purpose financial report that have been prepared in accordance with applicable
Accounting Standards, other mandatory professional reporting requirements (Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views) and
the Corporations Law. The financial statements have also been prepared on the basis of historical costs and do not take
into account changing money values or, except where stated, current valuations of non-current assets. Cost is based on the
fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets. The accounting policies have been consistently applied,
unless otherwise stated.

Income tax

The company has received endorsement as an Income Tax Exempt Charity and accordingly no provision for income tax
has been made

Fixed assets

Property, plant and equipment are brought to account at cost. The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from those assets. The recoverable
amount is assessed on the basis of expected net cash flows which will be received from the assets employment and
subsequent disposal.

The depreciable amount of all assets are depreciable over their useful lives commencing from the time the asset is held
ready for use.

Investments

Investments bought to account are at cost or at valuation. The carrying amount of investments is reviewed annually to
ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable amount of these investments.

Dividends and interests are bought to accounts on the profit and loss account when received.

Cash

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and in at call deposits with banks or financial
institutions, investment in money market instruments maturing within less than two months, net of bank overdrafts.




Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited
ABN 84 008 643 258
Directors Declaration
For the year ended 30 April 2011

The directors of the company declare that:

1. The financial statements and notes are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001:

(a) comply with Accounting Standards described in Note 1 to the financial statement and the Corporations
Regulations 2001; and

(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30th April 2011 and of its performance for the year ended
on that date in accordance with the accounting policies described in Note I to the financial statements:

In the directors' opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as and

2.
when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Matth?é John Colwell
Director

Dated: S‘-/'+ ﬁ '%1'




Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited
ABN 84 008 643 258
Independent Audit Report

Scope

We have audited the financial statements of Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited , being the Statement
of Financial Performance, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 30 April 2011. The Board of Directors are responsible for the financial
report. We have conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on it to the
members.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance
whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examination, on a test
basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in the financial report, and the evaluation of
accounting policies and significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an
opinion whether, in all material respects, the financial report is presented fairly in accordance with Accounting
Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements so as to present a view which is consistent
with our understanding of the association's financial position and performance as represented by the results of its
operations and its cash flows.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

Qualification

Cash donations are a significant source of revenue for the company. The company has determined that it is
impractical to establish control over the collection of cash donations prior to entry in its financial records.
Accordingly, as the evidence available to us regarding revenue from this source was limited, our audit
procedures with respect to cash donations had to be restricted to the amounts recorded in the financial records.
We therefore are unable to express an opinion whether cash donations received by the company are complete.

In the normal course of it's business, the company derives a substantial portion of it's income from donations and
sales to related parties. As the effective control over such transactions are not established until they are received

and entered in the accounting records, we have been unable to independently verify whether the amounts
received from this source have been completely accounted for.

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of Australian Relief & Mercy Services Limited is in accordance with:
(a) the Corporations Law, including:

(i)  giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 30th April 2011 and of their
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)  complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations; and

(b) other mandatory professional report requirements.

\4

Signed on :

Tony Khoury, Partner

T A Khoury & Co

Chartered Accountants

59 George Street, Burwood NSW 2134



Australian Relief and Mercy Services Limited
ABN 84 008 643 258

Auditor’s Independence Declaration

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER SECTION 307C OF THE
CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

TO THE DIRECTORS OF AUSTRALIAN RELIEF & MERCY SERVICES LIMITED

We declare that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30th April 2011 there have been:

() no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

(i) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit has been breached.

Signedon: \ATH J[SRTEMLEL PPSANNE

/
Tony Khoury, Partner
T A Khoury & Co
Chartered Accountants
59 George Street, Burwood NSW 2134
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